SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 5, 2013
9:12 a. m

9:12: 04 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:12 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Representati ve Mar k Neuman; Rex Shat t uck, Staff,
Representative Mark Neuman; M chael Paschal |, Staff,
Representati ve Eric Fei ge; Dan DeBart ol o, Di vi si on

Director, Permanent Fund Division, Departnment of Natural
Resour ces.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Joshua Decker, ACLU of Al aska, Anchorage.

SUVWARY

CSHB 24 (JUD) SELF DEFENSE
CSHB 24 (JUD) was REPORTED out of committee with
a "do pass” recommendation and wth four

previously published zero fiscal notes: FN1(ADV,
FN2(ADM), FN3(LAW, and FN4(DPS).



HB 52 PFD ALLOMABLE ABSENCE

HB 52 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#hb24
CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 24(JUD)

"An Act relating to self-defense in any place where a
person has a right to be.”

9:14:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MARK NEUMAN, introduced HB 24 and expl ai ned
that it addressed concerns from Al askans related to self-

defense. The bill allowed people the right to use deadly
force to protect thenselves or their famly nenbers. He
poi nted out |anguage on page 2, line 3 stating "in any

ot her place where a person has a right to be."” He expressed
concern with the statute's statenent that a person had the
duty to retreat in a self-defense situation. The statute's
justification clauses would not be altered. He nentioned
past discussion regarding gang violence, alcohol abuse,
sexual assaults. The bill"'s purpose was to add the |anguage
"any place where you have the right to be." He pointed out
that the House Judiciary Conmmttee added the word "other"
followng a discussion that a person already had the right
to self-defense if in a home, residence or place of
business. He nentioned a letter sent from the Attorney
General regarding the bill and his opinion that the rights
of Al askans should not be put before the rights of the
courts.

9:17: 59 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy stated that the bill was self-explanatory.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that a lot of tinme was spent with the

bill in the judiciary commttee. He understood that the
bill was introduced |ast year and wondered where the bil
di ed. Representative Neuman replied that the bill died in

t he Senate Fi nance Comm tt ee.

9:18: 42 AM

Co-Chair Meyer asked if the judiciary commttee's concerns
had been addressed. Representative Neuman responded that

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 04/05/13 9:12 A M



t he judiciary comittee revi ewed t he | egi sl ation
extensively and passed the bill.

9:18: 57 AM

Senator O son noted that Connecticut passed multiple |aws
on gun control follow ng a school shooting. He wondered how
Al aska could justify an opposite course. Representative
Neuman responded that the issue was one of self-defense and
Al askans supported the concept. He noted that Al aska |aws
currently allowed the use of deadly force to protect in the
event of an incident. The difference presented in the
legislation is the opportunity to protect oneself prior to
an incident.

9:20: 19 AM

Senat or O son understood that the law allowed one to use
deadly force when in the hone. He interpreted that HB 24
allowed the wuse of deadly force outside of the hone.
Representative Neuman answered in the affirmative, HB 24
all owed the sane rights anywhere a person had a right to be
in Alaska. He repeated that the justification clauses would
remai n unchanged.

9: 20: 53 AM

Senator O son stated a great difference between being in
one's honme versus elsewhere. He inquired how one mght
justify the wuse of deadly force outside of the hone.
Representati ve Neuman responded that he justified the right
for Alaskans to protect thenselves. He nentioned court
cases where defense attorneys clained that the crimnals
were innocent because the victimzed Al askan did not do
everything possible to retreat. The rights that Al askans
had to protect thenselves in their hones ought to extend to
areas outside of the hone.

9:22:31 AM

Senator Dunleavy noted that the issue addressed self-
defense rather than guns. He provided a hypothetica
scenario and noted that self-defense m ght include using a
gun, knife or even a rock.

9:23: 09 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 04/05/13 9:12 A M



Co-Chair Kelly inquired about the letter from the Attorney
Gener al .

9:23:22 AM

REX SHATTUCK, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE MARK NEUMAN, clarified
t hat t he At t or ney Ceneral ' s letter ment i oned by
Representative Neuman was drafted for last session's
version of the bill, HB 80.

9:23: 42 AM

Senator Hoffman inquired how it would be interpreted if a
person protecting thenselves was breaking another |law with
a conceal ed weapon. Representative Neuman replied that the
current Alaska laws did not require a person to have a
conceal ed weapons permt. He added that the justification
cl ause addressed the issue.

9:24: 46 AM

Senator Bishop assunmed that the Attorney General's opinion
was still good today. Representative Neunman responded that
the only difference between HB 80 and HB 24 was the
addition of the word "other" by the judiciary committee.

9:25:32 AM

JOSHUA DECKER, Anerican Civil Liberties Union (ACLU OF
ALASKA, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference) testified against HB
24. He explained that the bill did not address the self-
defense doctrine. Alaskans always had the right to use
deadly force when threatened wth immnent injury. He
explained that HB 24 lowered the duty to retreat. If the
bill was enacted, then where ever an Al askan had a | egal
right to be would not require retreat prior to using deadly
force. He stated that witten testinony was provided to

commttee nenbers listing multiple exanples where retreat
was possible, but would not be required under HB 24. He
stated ACLU s position that the bill would not increase

safety for Al askans.

9:27:25 AM

Senator O son noted that anyone wth a knife could kill as
fast as a gun and inquired why a person would not wish to
be ready to shoot when threatened with a knife. M. Decker

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 04/05/13 9:12 A M



agreed and stated that the law allowed a person faced with
that threat to use deadly force. The difference with HB 24
was that a person could shoot a person holding a knife who
was standing one block away. Wth that distance, a person
could safely retreat.

9:28:29 AM

Senator A son noted that if he was threatened with a knife,
his thoughts were not on retreating, but were on protecting
his famly if the offender was a "stone's throw' away. M.
Decker replied that if an offender were a stone's throw
away, then current law would allow a person to use deadly
force to protect thenselves. He stated that his letter
cited an exanple in Houston Texas where a simlar |aw
i ncreased gun play. He referenced the letters of support in
t he packet.

9:30: 27 AM

Senator O son interjected that he had a different opinion
He did not wsh for a person to incur large legal bills
because they were threatened.

9:31: 00 AM

Co-Chair Kelly recalled an article about police training
and stated that a person wth a knife who was 20 feet away
woul d be able to kill someone before he was able to draw a
gun. He derived from the article that the zone around a
person that required protection was |arger than expected.
He di sagreed with opinions expressed by ACLU attorneys.

9:32: 09 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy opined that there was an assunption in M.
Decker's statenment that everyone was fit enough to run
away. He noted that a handi capped person would not be able
to outrun an attacker. An elderly person mght also have
difficulty retreating.

9: 33: 38 AM

Representative Neuman stated that in the cases that M.
Decker was referring, it would not have been legal to use
deadly force because of Alaska's justification clauses. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 04/05/13 9:12 A M



added that line 6 and 7 of the bill ensured that a person
nmust believe that the use of deadly force was necessary.

9:35: 02 AM

M. Shattuck stated that the bill addressed self-defense.
In each case, the Attorney General would be obligated to
review the case and a jury would determ ne whether self-
defense was utilized in accordance with the |aw

9:36:12 AM

Representative Neuman recalled that Comm ssioner Msters
from Departnent of Public Safety testified that the bill
woul d not change the departnment's investigation process. He
added that testinony from Departnent of Law stated that the
process would remain the sane regardi ng prosecution.

9:37:26 AM

Co-Chair Meyer CLCSED public testinony. He observed that
the bill had a zero fiscal note and wondered why the bil
came to finance. He trusted the judiciary cormittee and he
supported the bill.

9:38: 06 AM
AT EASE

9:38: 51 AM
RECONVENED

9:38: 54 AM

Senator A son inquired what would happen if a person shot
sonmeone on their porch after receiving a conplaint about
| oud noise. He queried how the bill would deal wth that
situation. Representative Neuman replied that the neighbor
who approached the porch wth the conplaint would be
considered an initial aggressor under the justification
clauses. If the person listening to the loud nusic felt
t hreatened, then he would be able to protect hinself under
current Al aska | aw.

9:40: 22 AM

Co-Chair Kelly understood that the current statute defined
t he person conpl ai ni ng about the nusic as the aggressor.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 04/05/13 9:12 A M



9:40: 30 AM

Senat or Bishop noted that he did not oppose the bill, but
that he respected the comments of those who did. He noted
that it was big decision to take a person's life and that
he would do anything personally to retreat rather than
taking soneone's |ife. He disagreed that gun play would
i ncrease or be encouraged as a result of the bill.

9:42: 14 AM
Senator Dunleavy clarified that the bill was not a gun
bill. The bill sinply allowed Al askans to feel safe

protecting thensel ves agai nst aggressors, no natter where
t hey were.

9:43: 01 AM

Senator O son queried a hypothetical question about hunters
trespassing on soneone's property and the property owner

shooting the hunters. He inquired how the bill would dea
with that scenario. Representative Neunan responded that
the bill would still be prosecuting in the same way. He

observed that wunder the hunting scenario, the property
owner woul d not be reasonable in thinking that his life was
i n danger.

9:45:19 AM

Senator O son noted that in this particular situation, one
boy was killed and the other was paralyzed. He inquired if
the bill would protect the shooter. Representative Neuman
responded no because the shooter could not prove that he
t hought his Iife was in danger.

9:46: 00 AM

Co-Chair Kelly stated that the bill was a "collapsed”
version of the statutes. The statutes did not allow the
aggressor to shoot a person that was trying to get away.

9:46: 45 AM

Co-Chair Kelly MOWED to REPORT CSHB 24 (JUD) out of
commi ttee wth i ndi vi dual reconmendati ons and t he

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 04/05/13 9:12 A M



acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was
so ordered.

9:47: 08 AM

HB 24 was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do pass”
recommendation and wth four previously published zero
fiscal notes: FNL(ADM, FN2(ADM, FN3(LAW, and FN4(DPS).

9:47:10 AM
AT EASE

9:51: 43 AM
RECONVENED

#hb52
HOUSE BILL NO. 52 am

"An Act relating to allowable absences from the state
for purposes of eligibility for permanent fund
di vidends; and providing for an effective date."

9:51:43 AM

M CHAEL PASCHALL, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE ERIC FEI GE, stated
that the bill was introduced as an outfall of a provision
in the allowable absences pertaining to the Permanent Fund
Dividend (PFD). The provision created a situation where
nmenbers of congress and their staff were allowed to keep
their PFD on an allowable absence for |onger than ten
years. He nentioned that mlitary nmenbers were sonetines
denied their PFD because of the 10-year rule. The
individuals working in Wshington DC and those in the
mlitary were representing the state while serving their
country.

M. Paschall comrented that the bill renoved the 10-year
rule from statute, which opened the eligibility to
approxi mately 100 people. He nentioned that the existing
regul ations used by the division were sonetinmes bypassed
with a justifiable excuse, but when in statute, the

di vision was bound. The bill created a provision allow ng
an individual to be absent for less than five years wth
docunentation of an allowable absence. Exanmples  of

al l owabl e absences were accredited educational institution,
mlitary, staff or staff of congress and Peace Corps.
During the period of time the individual nust return to the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 04/05/13 9:12 A M



state for a consecutive 72 hours every two years. Follow ng
the fifth year, a person nust prove they were in the state
for 30 cunulative days over the previous five years and
provi de proof of residency for purposes of a PFD

9:56:41 AM

M. Paschall shared that there was an outline of criteria
in the bill used to evaluate the intent to return. The
criteria included a nmeasurenent of the length of tine away
from the state versus the length of tinme that the
individual was present in the state along wth the
frequency and duration of voluntary return trips to the
state during the past five years. Always in the preceding
five years, the individual nmust be in the state for a
cunmul ative of 30 days. He added the criteria of owning a
home in Alaska, paynent of resident taxes, registration of
a vehicle, voter registration and history, driver's
license, business Ilicense or professional |I|icense and
recei pt of benefits under a claimof residency in the state
or other jurisdiction. The hope was for an objective
scoring system based upon the length of absence to help
make the determination. The final «criterion was the
priority given by the individual to the state on an
enpl oynent assignnment preference list. He provided an
exanple in mlitary service when a nenber requested a
| ocation for service.

10: 00: 24 AM

M. Paschall explained the zero fiscal note. He shared that
the allotment of the dividend was based upon the
performance of the fund. The dividend anmount was cal cul ated
as a total nunber based upon the fund' s performance. The
nunber of eligible individuals did not have inpact on the
how much the state dispersed as part of the PFD. The
division would not alter their staff because the sane
investigative staff would continue to inspect applications.

10: 01: 50 AM

Co-Chair Meyer opined that nore division tine would be
spent in the investigation process. He remarked that
mul ti ple exceptions could result in a significant financial
inpact to the PFD and further changes would continue to
add-up. He agreed that the mlitary personnel were val uabl e
and shoul d be held harml ess.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 04/05/13 9:12 A M



10: 02: 22 AM

Senat or Bi shop surm sed that the division nust develop the
objective scoring system M . Paschal | replied that
guidelines within the division provided the opportunity to
develop new regulations to inplenent the legislature's
requests. The opportunity was available to create a nore
obj ective scoring system than the one currently in place
He provided an exanple of an applicant and noted that an
i ndi vi dual who had lived in Alaska during their youth would
score higher than an individual who had lived in Al aska for
a brief tine.

10: 04: 15 AM

Senator Bishop asked if section 2 identified the scoring
system needs. M. Paschall deferred the question to the
division director. He knew that many discussions regarding
the scoring system had occurred, but he was unsure about
the amount of time that the division spent on the process.

10: 04: 51 AM

Senator O son stressed that he had great respect for
mlitary service. He wondered how to ensure that the
exceptions would not take tinme or resources fromthe state.
M. Paschall explained that there was no change in the
definition of an "allowable absence.” The justification
woul d be mandatory for those who were not returning to the
state after the five years. The provision changed in the
| egislation addressed the tenth year. The current
gui delines would be tightened up after the sixth year with
t he | egislation.

10: 07: 30 AM

Senator (O son stressed that the division would spend
addi ti onal tinme i nvestigating t he applications and
al | owabl e absences. He questioned the zero fiscal note. M.
Paschal | deferred the question to the division director.

10: 08: 41 AM

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

10: 08: 53 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 04/05/13 9:12 A M



DAN DEBARTOLO, DI VISION DI RECTOR, PERMANENT FUND DI VI SI ON
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES testified that both the ten
and the five year rules were in place. He stated that the
average technician spent an average of eight to ten hours
on the discussed cases. If the ten-year rule was elim nated
the technicians no | onger had that responsibility. He noted
that the five year rule was in regulation wth "soft"
| anguage. The division opined that noving the regulation
into statute provided a nore powerful statenent. If a
person did not return to the state for a cunulative of 30
days over the five years, the action denonstrated that they
did not intend to return.

10: 11: 30 AM

Senat or O son expressed satisfaction with the answer.
Co- Chair Meyer noted that there was a proposed anmendnent.

10:12:10 AM
AT EASE

10:13: 47 AM
RECONVENED

Vice-Chair Fairclough stated that she had reviewed the
Al aska State Statutes. She related that the anendnent
proposed another exenption by inserting "or a United States
national team for an Aynpic sport."” She pointed out that
exenption 15 in AS 43.23.08 stated that "because of
training or conpeting as a nenber of the United States
Aynpic team™ which covered her concerns. M. Debartolo
responded that that the division's interpretation was that
the individual was a selected A ynpic team nenber, but not
one selected for the national team

10: 15: 38 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough observed that the departnment had
i nappropriately interpreted the intent of the |egislature.
She proposed review of her anendnent.

10: 16: 02 AM

Co-Chair Kelly requested an explanation of the departnment's
interpretation. M. DeBartolo replied that the division's

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 04/05/13 9:12 A M



interpretation of the legislation was that a "nmenber of the
United States A ynpic teanl’ had been selected for the team
and was on the team while the ganes were in play. The
division did not consider a person who was part of the
United States National team a nenber of the A ynpic team

10:17: 02 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough wshed to investigate the matter
further. She understood the division's distinction, but
wondered if the anmendnment woul d be considered "friendly" by
t he sponsor.

10:17: 34 AM

Co-Chair Meyer asked if the sponsor agreed wth the
amendnment. M. Paschall replied in the affirmative.

10: 17: 45 AM

Senator Hoffman cited section 2, "an individual may rebut
this presunption by providing clear and convincing evidence
to the departnment.” He pointed out Iline 29 nunber 4,
"additional itens that can be used for rebuttal."” He called
into question registration of a vehicle, voting history,
and driver's license. He asked if a person who could prove
that they had a registered vehicle outside of the state or
was registered to vote or licensed to drive outside of the
state would be ineligible for the PFD under the proposed
legislation. M. Debartolo noted that taking steps to
register to vote outside of the state was typically
considered a "severing action,”™ which could affect one's
eligibility determ nation. College students were encouraged
to vote absentee for that purpose.

10: 19: 56 AM

Senator Hoffman inquired what circunstances would allow
soneone to get a dividend when they had a registered
vehicle or voter registration or driver's Ilicense from
anot her state. M. Debartolo replied that there were few
ci rcunst ances where a person could receive a dividend under
the stated circunstances.

10: 20: 46 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 04/05/13 9:12 A M



Vice-Chair Fairclough inquired when the state m ght expect
to hit a tipping point. She observed 17 different
exceptions to the original residency requirenents and
Al askan's were losing noney in their dividends as a result.
M. Paschall replied that many different options were
avai l abl e. The sponsor chose to address only the issue of
treating individuals differently at ten years. The state
Suprene Court stated that economic protection under the
equal protection clause placed the change at the | east
scrutiny. He did not feel that the state was close to a
ti pping point. Wile he did not object to the amendnent, it
did add another opening that fell outside of the bill's
i ntentions.

10: 23: 39 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough stated that she would like to hear
from the legislative |legal departnent. She wondered where
the hurdle was for those who would not testify and who
expand in their generosity to share wth others being
di senfranchi sed by access to that resource. She wondered if
a higher hurdle for access to the PFD would be a wse
deci si on.

10: 25: 05 AM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that Vice-Chair Fairclough brought up
a good point and that permanent fund had been around since
1981 with 17 exceptions nmade. He opined that the mlitary
personnel were inportant as nenbers of Congress and their
staff, but felt that Vice-Chair Fairclough's concerns
warranted attention.

10: 26: 07 AM

Senator Hoffman related a hypothetical scenari o. He
inquired if a mnor could reapply for a dividend in cases
where a parent neglected to submt their application. He
noted that mnors were at the nercy of their parents
regarding filing for a PFD. M. DeBartolo responded that a
provision existed for a child that did not receive a
dividend. Filing for prior dividends could occur between
their 18th and 20th birthday. Eligibility was then revi ened
by the division staff.

10: 28: 39 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 04/05/13 9:12 A M



Co- Chair Meyer appreciated the questions brought forth by
the conmittee.

Senator Hoffrman inquired how many ninors fell into the
category described. M. DeBartolo offered to provide the
data to Senator Hoffman.

10: 29: 42 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough inquired if the exanple that Senator
Hof fman had defined was in regulation or statute. M.
DeBartol o responded that the provision for an 18 year old
to reapply for their m ssed dividends was in statute.

10: 30: 47 AM

HB 52 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

10: 31: 04 AM

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:32 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 04/05/13 9:12 A M



